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	UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA


	
GLAUCO ORTOLANO, Individually And On Behalf Of All Others Similarly Situated,

                           Plaintiff,

                  vs.

TEAM COMMUNICATIONS GROUP, INC.; DREW S. LEVIN; and TIMOTHY A. HILL,

                           Defendants.
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CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT




JURY TRIAL DEMANDED



	Plaintiff, for his class action complaint (the "Complaint"), alleges upon the investigation conducted by and through his undersigned attorneys, except as to those paragraphs relating to the plaintiff, his purchases of the common stock of Team Communcations Group, Inc. (“Team” or the “Company”), and his suitability to serve as a class representative, which are alleged upon personal knowledge, the following: 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE
This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to Section 27 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act"), 15 U.S.C. § 78aa.

The claims asserted herein arise under Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 78j(b) and 78t(a), and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"), 17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5. 

Venue is proper in this district pursuant to, among others, Section 27 of the Exchange Act because defendant Team maintains executive offices in this district, and many of the alleged acts, transactions, and conduct constituting violations of law, including the preparation, issuance, and dissemination to the investing public of materially false and misleading information, occurred, at least in part, in this district. 

In connection with the acts alleged in this Complaint, defendants, directly and indirectly, used the means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce, including the mails, telephone communications, and the facilities of the national securities exchanges.

THE PARTIES

A. Plaintiff
Plaintiff Glauco Ortolano purchased shares of Team securities during the Class Period as set forth in his attached certification, and has been damaged thereby.

B. Defendants
Defendant Team Communications Group, Inc. (“Team” or the “Company”) is a California corporation with its principal executive offices located at 11818 Wilshire Blvd., Suite 200, Los Angeles, California 90025. Team develops, produces and distributes television programming for the domestic and international television markets.

Defendant Drew S. Levin ("Levin") was, at all relevant times herein, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company. By virtue of his role as an officer and director of the Company, and by virtue of his role as the primary voice of the Company in all press releases and interviews, Levin is a control person of the Company as that term is construed by the federal securities laws. Defendant Levin is a resident of Southern California and throughout the Class Period he maintained his principal executive offices at 11818 Wilshire Blvd., Los Angeles, California.

Defendant Timothy A. Hill (“Hill”) was Chief Financial Officer of the Company until his resignation from the Company in October 2000. By virtue of his role as an officer of the Company, and by virtue of his role as the principal financial officer responsible for the Company's financial reporting, defendant Hill is a control person of the Company as that term is construed by the federal securities laws. Defendant Hill is a resident of Southern California, and throughout the Class Period until his departure from the Company, he maintained his principal executive offices at 11818 Wilshire Blvd., Los Angeles, California..

The statements made by the Defendants, as outlined below, were materially false and misleading when made. Defendants had no reasonable or adequate basis to justify or support their statements concerning Team's operating condition and future prospects. Defendants had, during the Class Period, direct knowledge of the Company's financial condition, the status and nature of its financial relationships with related parties and the inappropriate accounting treatment of such transactions.

PLAINTIFF'S CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS
Plaintiff brings this action as a class action pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23 on behalf of a Class consisting of all persons and entities who purchased Team securities between November 19, 1999 and March 16, 2001, inclusive (the "Class Period"), and who were damaged thereby (the "Class"). Excluded from the Class are defendants, the officers and directors of the Company, members of their immediate families and their legal representatives, heirs, successors and assigns and any entity in which defendants have or had a controlling interest.

The Class is so numerous that joinder of all Class members is impracticable. While the exact number of Class members is unknown to plaintiff at this time and can only be ascertained from the records maintained by Team or its agents, as of October 31, 2000, there were 14,243,339 shares of Team common stock outstanding and held by what plaintiff believes to be thousands of shareholders of record throughout the world.

Plaintiff's claims are typical of the claims of the members of the Class, since all members of the Class purchased Team common stock during the Class Period and sustained damages arising out of Defendants' wrongful conduct in violation of federal securities laws as alleged herein.

Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the members of the Class. Plaintiff has retained counsel competent and experienced in class action and securities litigation and plaintiff has no interests antagonistic to or in conflict with the other members of the Class.

A class action is superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of this controversy. Joinder of all Class members is impracticable. The likelihood of individual Class members prosecuting separate claims is remote since the damages suffered by individual Class members may be relatively small and the expense and burden of individual litigation makes it impossible for Class members individually to seek redress for the wrongs done to them. Thus, it is desirable for all concerned to concentrate this litigation in this particular forum. No unusual difficulties are likely to be encountered in the management of this class action. 

There are questions of law and fact common to the members of the Class which predominate over any questions affecting only individual members. These common questions of law and fact include, among others:

· whether Defendants violated Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Exchange Act and SEC Rule 10b-5;

· whether Defendants participated in the common course of conduct complained of herein;

· whether documents, releases, reports, and statements disseminated to the investing public during the Class Period omitted to state or misrepresented material facts about the Company's financial condition and operations;

· whether Defendants acted with knowledge or with reckless disregard for the truth in omitting to state and/or misrepresenting material facts about the Company's revenues and operations;

· whether, during the Class Period, the market prices of Team common stock were artificially inflated due to the non-disclosures and/or material misrepresentations complained of herein; and

· whether the members of the Class have sustained damages, and, if so, the proper measure thereof.

Plaintiff will rely, in part, upon the presumption of reliance established by the fraud-on-the-market doctrine in that:

· Defendants made public misrepresentations during the Class Period, as alleged in this Complaint;

· the misrepresentations were material;

· shares of Team were traded on developed stock exchanges, namely the NASDAQ National Market System and the Neuer Markt of the Deutsche Bourse, which are efficient markets within the meaning of that term in the context used in this Complaint; the prices of such securities traded in tandem throughout the Class Period; and 

· plaintiff and the other members of the Class purchased their Team common stock between the time Defendants made the misrepresentations and the time the truth was fully revealed, without knowledge of the falsity of the misrepresentations.

Based upon the above, plaintiff and the Class are entitled to a presumption of reliance upon the integrity of the market for, at least, the purposes of class certification, as well as for ultimate proof of their claims on the merits. Similarly, plaintiff and the Class are entitled to a presumption of reliance established by the material omissions alleged in this Complaint.
NO SAFE HARBOR

The statutory safe harbor provided for forward-looking statements under certain circumstances does not apply to any of the allegedly false statements pleaded in this Complaint, because the specific statements pleaded herein were neither identified as "forward-looking statements" when made, nor accompanied by meaningful cautionary language identifying important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the specific statements. To the extent that the statutory safe harbor applies to any of the statements pleaded herein, Defendants are liable for those false forward-looking statements because at the time each of those forward-looking statements was made, the speaker knew that the particular forward-looking statement was false, and/or the forward-looking statement was made by or with the approval of an executive officer of Team who knew that the statement was false or misleading.
SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS

On February 13, 2001, Team announced that its Chief Executive Officer was resigning and that it was “investigating whether several deal that the company has been involved in over the past year 'lacked economic substance.'” The company also announced that it expected to report a $21 million charge in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000 and a loss of $19 million for the year “or possibly more.” More specifically, the Company disclosed that certain of its film-library acquisition and distribution transactions during the past year “lacked economic substance.” Included among the write-offs was $9 million the Company invested in a United Kingdom subsidiary named Dandelion. Upon disclosure of this news, Team stock lost much of its value. As a result of these disclosures, it became clear for the first time to investors that the Company's previously reported financial results vastly overstated the Company's financial condition and earnings, and that much of the Company's reported revenues were the result of improperly recognized transactions with related parties – precisely the kind of transaction that companies are required to carefully and conservatively report. The Company's stock was devastated on that date. Thereafter, the Company announced on March 16, 2001, that its restatements and write-downs amounted to $29 million. The Company's stock price has further declined upon this disclosure. 

The Class Period begins on November 19, 1999, the date on which Team announced its quarterly financial results for the third quarter of fiscal 1999, the quarterly period ending September 30, 1999, and the date on which Team filed its quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the third quarter of fiscal 1999, which report was signed by defendants Levin and Hill.

In the quarterly report and earnings press release, the Company disclosed that it net income of $668,600 on total revenues of $6,253,400 for the three months period ending September 30, 1999. Defendant Levin stated in a press release that the Company's results had “exceeded expectations” and the Company claimed to have achieved dramatic increases in its income. These financial results, which were included in both a Company press release and a Report on Form 10-Q, were materially false and misleading because the bulk of the revenue reported by the Company was the result of related party transactions that “lacked economic substance.” As a result, the Company was not in fact profitable as it claimed, thus vastly overstating its financial condition.

On November 29, 1999, the Company announced that it had completed the sale of 6.15 million common shares of its stock on the Neuer Markt of the Deutsche Bourse. The shares were sold in a secondary public offering pursuant to a Registration Statement and Prospectus prepared on form SB-2 filed with the SEC. The shares were sold at a price of $6.21 per share, yielding proceeds to the company of $38 million.

On April 6, 2000, the Company announced its 1999 year end results. In its press release, defendant Levin referred to the Company's “explosive year of growth” and its “solid internal growth”, in reporting “record revenues of approximately $24.1 million” and net earnings of $1.8 million for the year ended December 31, 1999. These financial results, which were included in both a Company press release and a Report on Form 10-K, were materially false and misleading because the bulk of the revenue reported by the Company was the result of related party transactions that “lacked economic substance.” As a result, the Company was not in fact profitable as it claimed, thus vastly overstating its financial condition.

On May 18, 2000, the Company announced purportedly “Strong Results for First Quarter 2000,” reporting that sales (total quarterly revenues) increased by 87% to $6,566.000 in the quarter, generating net income of $354,000. Defendant Levin commented, among other things, that, “we are exceptionally pleased ... as we continue to add increased revenue and net sales each reporting period.” These financial results, which were included in both a Company press release and a Report on Form 10-Q, were materially false and misleading because the bulk of the revenue reported by the Company was the result of related party transactions that “lacked economic substance.” As a result, the Company was not in fact profitable as it claimed, thus vastly overstating its financial condition.

On August 22, 2000, the Company announced purportedly “Record Results for Second Quarter 2000,” reporting total revenues of $12,897,300, generating net income of $1,292,800. Included among these figures were sales of $8,000,000 to Dandelion.
These financial results, which were included in both a Company press release and a Report on Form 10-Q, were materially false and misleading because the bulk of the revenue reported by the Company was the result of related party transactions that “lacked economic substance.” As a result, the Company was not in fact profitable as it claimed, thus vastly overstating its financial condition.

On October 12, 2000, the Company announced that defendant Hill had been replaced by Michael Meltzer as Chief Financial Officer.

On November 22, 2000, the Company announced “Record Results for Third Quarter 2000" reporting that sales increased by 144% to $15,259,000 over the same period in 1999, and that the Company had net income in the quarter of $1,040,300. Defendant Levin again stated that he was “exceptionally pleased” with the results and he stated that “our strategy of creating a global content supplier is clearly working, not only in terms of significant increases in sales and earnings, but also in the proportion of revenues being generated by each of our three operating centers.” These financial results, which were included in both a Company press release and a Report on Form 10-Q, were materially false and misleading because the bulk of the revenue reported by the Company was the result of related party transactions that “lacked economic substance.” As a result, the Company was not in fact profitable as it claimed, thus vastly overstating its financial condition. 

All of the reported financial statements and the related discussions contained therein, which the Individual Defendants caused the Company to file and issue during the Class Period, and in public reports about and press releases issued by the Company, were false products of financial manipulations which deceived members of the investing public who purchased Team securities based upon those representations.

During the Class Period, defendants materially misled the investing public, thereby inflating the price of Team securities, by publicly issuing false and misleading statements and omitting to disclose material facts necessary to make defendants' statements, as set forth herein, not false and misleading. Said statements and omissions were materially false and misleading in that they failed to disclose material adverse information and misrepresented the truth about the Company, its financial performance, accounting, reporting and condition, including, inter alia:

· During the Class Period, the Company's income was overstated by at least $29 million after taxes;

· The Company's gross profits and earnings per share were likewise each materially overstated;

· The Company's financial statements did not present, in all material respects, the Company's true financial condition, and did not reflect all adjustments which were necessary for a fair statement of the interim and full year periods presented;

· The Company's financial statements for each quarterly period during the Class Period were not presented in conformity with GAAP or principles of fair reporting.

In addition, the defendants falsely and materially overstated the Company's net income and earnings per share for each of the Company's quarterly periods during the Class Period. Moreover, by failing to file financial statements with the SEC which conformed to the requirements of GAAP, such financial statements were presumptively misleading and inaccurate pursuant to Regulation S-X, 17 CFR 210.4-01(a)(1).

As a result of its accounting improprieties, particularly with respect to the Company's accounting for inventories and income during the Class Period, the Company's reported financial results (and all defendants) also violated at least the following provisions of GAAP for which each defendant is necessarily responsible:

· The principle that financial reporting should provide information that is useful to present and potential investors and creditors and other users in making rational investment, credit and similar decisions was violated (FASB Statement of Concepts No. 1, ¶ 34);

· The principle that financial reporting should provide information about the economic resources of an enterprise, the claims to those resources, and the effects of transactions, events and circumstances that change resources and claims to those resources was violated (FASB Statement of Concepts No. 1, ¶ 40);

· The principle that financial reporting should provide information about how management of an enterprise has discharged its stewardship responsibility to owners (stockholders) for the use of enterprise resources entrusted to it was violated. To the extent that management offers securities of the enterprise to the public, it voluntarily accepts wider responsibilities for accountability to prospective investors and to the public in general (FASB Statement of Concepts No. 1, ¶ 50);

· The principle that financial reporting should provide information about an enterprise's financial performance during a period was violated. Investors and creditors often use information about the past to help in assessing the prospects of an enterprise. Thus, although investment and credit decisions reflect investors' expectations about future enterprise performance, those expectations are commonly based at least partly on evaluations of past enterprise performance (FASB Statement of Concepts No. 1, ¶ 42);

· The principle that financial reporting should be reliable in that it represents what it purports to represent was violated. That information should be reliable as well as relevant to a notion that is central to accounting (FASB Statement of Concepts No. 2, ¶¶ 58-59);

· The principle of completeness, which means that nothing is left out of the information that may be necessary to ensure that it validly represents underlying events and conditions, was violated (FASB Statement of Concepts No. 2, ¶ 79); 

· The principle that conservatism be used as a prudent reaction to uncertainty to try to ensure that uncertainties and risks inherent in business situations are adequately considered was violated. The best way to avoid injury to investors is to try to ensure that what is reported represents what it purports to represent (FASB Statement of Concepts No. 2, ¶¶ 95, 97). 

The February 12, 2001 announcement revealed problems related to Team's business and financial operations which by their nature were ongoing and highly material. These financial misstatements were operative throughout the relevant time period.

COUNT I
Violation Of § 10(b) Of The Exchange Act Against
Defendants Team, Levin and Hill
Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained above.

This claim is brought against the Company and defendants Levin and Hill for violations of § 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder for perpetrating a fraud on the market for Team securities. As set forth above, each of the defendants is liable under these anti-fraud provisions of the federal securities laws for the various and numerous misleading public pronouncements of revenues, revenues growth, income and income growth, and related pronouncements of growth and financial success, that falsely and misleadingly suggested that the Company was growing and that materially misstated the Company's financial position at all relevant times.

The defendants, directly and indirectly, by the use of means or instrumentalities of interstate commerce and/or of the mails, engaged and participated in a continuous course of fraudulent conduct to artificially raise and maintain the artificially inflated market price of Team securities stock during the Class Period. These defendants employed devices, schemes and artifices to defraud and engaged in acts, practices, and a course of conduct as alleged herein, which operated as a fraud and deceit upon the purchasers of Team securities during the Class Period.

At the time of the course of conduct alleged above, plaintiffs and the other members of the Class were ignorant of the facts alleged herein. Plaintiffs and the class members could not in the exercise of reasonable diligence have known the actual facts. In reliance on the integrity of the market price of these securities, plaintiffs and other members of the Class were induced to and did purchase Team securities at artificially inflated prices. Had plaintiffs and other members of the Class known the truth, they would not have taken such action.

As set forth above, the defendants, with knowledge or in reckless disregard of the fraudulent nature of the conduct complained of herein, caused and permitted the actions which are alleged to have occurred. Defendants' scienter may also be readily inferred from the significant positions of defendant Levin and Hill, and Levin's regular and frequent appearances as the Company's primary spokesperson, and Levin and Hill's joint invovlement with the preparation of and signature on the Company's regular period financial reports filed with the SEC. Defendants were highly motivated to inflate and maintain the price of Team stock in order to effectuate the Offering in November 1999, as well as to inflate and maintain the prices of other securities issued by the Company, and to facilitate defendant Levin's sales of his personal holdings of Team stock on December 2, 1999 at a price of $5.59 per share, yielding proceeds from such insider sales of $838,500.

By virtue of the foregoing, the Company and defendants have violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act, and Rule 10-5 promulgated thereunder.

Plaintiffs and other members of the Class have been damaged by these defendants' violations as described in this Count and seek recovery for the damages caused thereby. 

COUNT II
Violations of § 20(a) of the Exchange Act
Against Defendants Levin and Hill

Plaintiff repeats and realleges the allegations set forth above as if set forth fully herein. This claim is asserted against defendants Levin and Hill.

As set forth above, defendants Levin and Hill were each controlling persons of Team within the meaning of Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act as alleged herein, and had the power to influence and control and/or did influence and control, directly or indirectly, the decision-making of Team, including the practices and efforts undertaken with respect to Team which plaintiffs contend are deceitful. 

As set forth above, Team violated Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5 as alleged in this Complaint. By virtue of their positions as controlling persons, defendants Levin and Hill are liable pursuant to Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act. As a direct and proximate result of the wrongful conduct of these defendants, plaintiffs and other members of the Class suffered damages in connection with their purchases of the Company's securities during the Class Period.
PRAYER FOR RELIEF 



WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays for judgment as follows:

A.      An order certifying the Class as set forth herein and designating plaintiff as the Class representative and his counsel as Class counsel;
B.      A judgment declaring the conduct of the Defendants to be in violation of law as set forth herein;
C.      A judgment awarding plaintiff and the other members of the Class compensation for the damages which they have sustained as a result of the Defendants' unlawful conduct stated above;
D.      A judgment awarding plaintiff's reasonable attorneys' fees, experts' fees, interest and cost of suit; and
E.      Such other and further relief as this Court may deem just.

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED


Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury.



DATED: March 22, 2001

Respectfully submitted,
Law Offices of Brian Barry
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